
 

                                            Meeting Minutes 1 

                     North Hampton Planning Board  2 

                 Tuesday, October 2, 2012 at 6:30pm 3 

                     Town Hall, 231 Atlantic Avenue 4 

 5 

  6 

 7 
                            8 
These minutes were prepared as a reasonable summary of the essential content of this meeting, not as a 9 
transcription. 10 
 11 
Members present:  Shep Kroner, Chair; Laurel Pohl, Vice Chair, Joseph Arena, Barbara Kohl, Mike 12 
Hornsby, and Tim Harned.  13 
 14 
Members absent: Phil Wilson, Select Board Representative 15 
 16 
Alternates present: Larry Miller, Alternate Select Board Representative and Nancy Monaghan (Ms. 17 
Monaghan was in the Audience). 18 
 19 
Others present:  Brian Groth, RPC Circuit Rider, and Wendy Chase, Recording Secretary 20 
 21 
Mr. Kroner convened the meeting at 6:30 p.m.  22 
 23 
Mr. Kroner seated Mr. Miller for Mr. Wilson.  24 
 25 

I.  Old Business 26 

 27 

Case #12:10 – Golden Ks LLC, 63 Atlantic Avenue, North Hampton, NH.  The Applicant proposes a 2-lot 28 
subdivision by subdividing one (1) residential house lot off from the parent parcel (005-038), which will 29 
front onto Chapel Road, leaving the commercial property with a single residence on Atlantic Avenue.  30 
The Applicant also proposes a minor lot line adjustment to merge adjacent lot, identified as Tax Map 5, 31 
Lot 39, with the newly created residential house lot.  Property owner: Golden Ks LLC, Guy Marshall, 63 32 
Atlantic Avenue, North Hampton, NH: Property location: 63 Atlantic Avenue and Chapel Road; Tax Map 33 
& Lots 005-038 and 005-039; Zoning district: R-2.  This Case has been continued from the September 2, 34 
2012 meeting, and the plan has been modified to comply with conditions set forth by the Zoning Board 35 
of Adjustment on August 28, 2012 on their approved Variance to Article V, Section 501.2. 36 
 37 
In attendance for this application: 38 
Guy Marshall, Owner/Applicant 39 
Attorney Timothy Phoenix, Applicant’s Counsel 40 
Eric Weinberg, Altus Engineering, Applicant’s Engineer 41 
 42 
Mr. Kroner explained that this Case was continued from the June 5, 2012 Meeting so that the Applicant 43 
could apply to the Zoning Board for a Variance to Article V, Section 501.2 – expansion, extension or 44 
change to a non-conforming use, as advised by the Planning Board.  45 
 46 



Planning Board  
October 2, 2012                 Page 2 of 10 
 

Disclaimer – these minutes are prepared by the Recording Secretary within five (5) business days as required by NH 
RSA 91A:2,II.  They will not be finalized until approved by majority vote of the Planning Board. 

The Applicant applied for a variance to Article V, Section 501.2 and was granted relief from the Zoning 47 
Board on August 28, 2012, with the following Conditions of Approval: 48 
 49 
Special Conditions.  (1).To allow a subdivision of a seven (7) acre commercial parcel, more or less, into 50 
a two (2) lot subdivision, comprising of one (1) commercial lot and one (1) residential lot, description as 51 
follows:  A commercial three (3) acre tract, more or less, on the northerly side of Atlantic Ave., identified 52 
as 63 Atlantic Ave., with existing structures currently occupied by Lamprey Energy.  A residential four 53 
(4) acre tract, more or less, on the southerly side of Chapel Road, adjacent to and northerly of the first 54 
tract.  Together with assessors’ parcel 5-39, westerly of, and adjacent to, the four acre tract, and also 55 
known as the coal and wood shed parcel, (2) to allow the construction of just one (1) residential dwelling 56 
on the residential lot; and, (3) the commercial/business/industrial operation on Lot 5-39, will be 57 
completely discontinued, and permanently cease when and as a subdivision approval is granted, if at all, 58 
by the North Hampton Planning Board.   59 
 60 
Mr. Weinrieb said that the proposed application was noticed as a Subdivision and Lot line Adjustment, 61 
when in actuality it is just a lot line adjustment. He said it should not be considered a subdivision because 62 
the proposal begins with two lots, and ends up with two lots.  63 
 64 
Both Mr. Kroner and Mr. Groth disagreed that it was not a subdivision.  Mr. Groth referred to the 65 
definitions in the Subdivision Regulations – Lot Line Adjustment: means the change of boundary lines 66 
between abutting parcels that does not result in the creation of any new building lots. He said that this 67 
proposal, if approved, will create a new building lot; therefore it is a subdivision.  68 
 69 
The Board agreed that it was a subdivision, as well as, a lot line adjustment.  70 
 71 
Mr. Weinrieb said that lot 5-38 consists of seven (7) acres and lot 5-39 (where the coal/wood sheds are 72 
located) consists of .361 acres. He said they propose a lot line adjustment by eliminating the lot line 73 
between lots 38 and 39 and moving it so that it would create two lots; lot 5-38 will have 3.02 acres and lot 74 
5-39 will have 4.36 acres and both lots will have over 175-feet of frontage and meet all zoning 75 
requirements. Both lots have adequate area to site the septic systems and replacement septic system for 76 
the Lamprey Energy lot. The main lot is already serviced by Aquarion Water Company and they have 77 
secured approval from Aquarion to service the new lot from Chapel Road. The wetlands were delineated 78 
by Mark West and Mike Cuomo from RCCD witnessed the test pits and validated Mr. Weinrieb’s work. 79 
The HISS Map was completed by Joe Noel.  80 
 81 
The Board determined that the Application was complete. 82 
 83 
Dr. Arena moved and Ms. Pohl seconded the motion to take jurisdiction of the Application  84 
Case #12:10 – Golden K’s LLC. 85 
The vote was unanimous in favor or the motion (7-0). 86 
 87 
Mr. Kroner opened the Public Hearing at 6:35 p.m.  88 
 89 
Carla Meyers, 5 Maple Road – said that she was not present at the prior meetings that involved this case 90 
but has reviewed most of the meeting minutes. She referred to the coal/wood sheds on lot 5-39 and 91 
asked if they would be torn down. 92 
 93 
Mr. Marshall explained that he has agreed to combine lot 5-39 with the proposed new subdivided lot 94 
and discontinue all commercial operations on that lot, identified as Tax Map 5, Lot 39, but it is up to the 95 



Planning Board  
October 2, 2012                 Page 3 of 10 
 

Disclaimer – these minutes are prepared by the Recording Secretary within five (5) business days as required by NH 
RSA 91A:2,II.  They will not be finalized until approved by majority vote of the Planning Board. 

new owner of the new subdivided lot on what they want to do with the coal/wood sheds.   Mr. Marshall 96 
said that lot 5-39 has never been commercially “zoned”; it was “grandfathered” for commercial “use”. 97 
 98 
Ms. Kohl suggested that the discontinuation of the commercial use should be “spelled out” in the new 99 
deed. 100 
 101 
Mr. Phoenix said that the lot is in a residential zone, so it would not have to be included in the deed; it’s 102 
just like any other residentially zoned lot and if anyone wanted to do anything with the lot they would 103 
be required to apply for, and receive, the proper permits.  104 
 105 
Mr. Harned said that he would like to see something in writing, if approved, that the new lot is no longer 106 
commercially “grandfathered”.   Mr. Phoenix said he had no objection to that; they would add a note to 107 
the plan. 108 
 109 
Mr. Kroner said that the Zoning Board’s decision, with the conditions of approval, is added under the 110 
“notes” on the final Plan, which is recorded at the Registry of Deeds. 111 
 112 
Jake Parker, representing Alan Williams, who resides at 38 Chapel Road said that he once owned Parker 113 
Surveying and is a licensed Surveyor, Wetlands Scientist and licensed Septic Designer.  He said that if the 114 
Planning Board were to approve the subdivision they would like the Board to make it a “condition of 115 
approval” that the coal/wood sheds on lot 5-39 be torn down.  He said they are currently encroaching in 116 
the road causing a safety hazard. He said the corner of the shed is approximately three (3) feet from the 117 
road making it difficult to plow the road.  118 
 119 
Mr. Kroner said that he is the Planning Board Representative to the Heritage Commission and would not 120 
be comfortable making such a condition.  He said the buildings could possibly be considered as historic 121 
buildings. 122 
 123 
Mr. Marshall said the sheds were built over 100 years ago; long before the road was built.  124 
 125 
Mr. Parker pointed out what he believed to be discrepancies on the plan that was part of the original 126 
application.  Mr. Kroner pointed out that a new plan has been submitted to the Board reflecting the 127 
“Conditions of Approval” in the Zoning Board’s August 28, 2012 Decision. 128 
 129 
Mr. Parker said that he has had conversations with the Town’s Public Works Director John Hubbard on 130 
the drainage issues in the area of the Williams’ property and the Lamprey Energy property. Mr. Marshall 131 
was also present during that conversation.  Mr. Hubbard determined, after taking elevations, that there 132 
was a pitch in the drainage pipe under the road.  Mr. Hubbard plans to replace the catch basin and 133 
locate it to a lower elevation and align it to the pipe so that it will operate better and absorb some of the 134 
ground water.  135 
 136 
Mr. Parker said that the Board should make it a condition of approval that a NH DES Dredge and Fill 137 
Permit should be applied for and approved by the State to correct the “drainage pipe mess” and a 138 
drainage easement should be added to the plan, so that the culvert can be maintained.  139 
Ms. Pohl voiced concern over the fact that the Town would be getting involved in trying to rectify the 140 
drainage issue for this project.  141 
 142 



Planning Board  
October 2, 2012                 Page 4 of 10 
 

Disclaimer – these minutes are prepared by the Recording Secretary within five (5) business days as required by NH 
RSA 91A:2,II.  They will not be finalized until approved by majority vote of the Planning Board. 

Discussion ensued on the flooding issues on Chapel Road.  Mr. Parker said a pipe was put on the 143 
Williams’ property before they owned it by the Lamprey’s when they extended the culvert, it drains the 144 
water from the subject lot’s field onto his property. Mr. Parker said that he believes it was a verbal 145 
agreement between Mrs. Lamprey and Mrs. Williams’ cousin, but it was made without a drainage 146 
easement, and without proper State permit approvals.  147 
 148 
Mr. Kroner referred to the High Intensity Soil Survey (HISS) Map and said that the back southeast corner 149 
shows that both areas are identified as moderately well drained areas so there should be no problem 150 
with absorption of the water runoff from a single-family house.  151 
 152 
Mr. Harned said that Mr. Parker raised a lot of issues, but was uncertain on what it is that he and the 153 
Williams’ want rectified. Mr. Harned understood Mr. Parker to mean that there may have been some 154 
things in the beginning that were done incorrectly, but if corrected, it will provide for more water runoff 155 
onto the Williams’ property.   156 
 157 
Mr. Parker said that the Williams’ would rather have more water, but handled properly, because as it 158 
stands there is more “ponding” in the area. He said if the pipes are corrected to what they should be; it 159 
will help with the “ponding” issue.  160 
 161 
Dr. Arena said that to mitigate the sheet flow across Chapel Road a culvert was installed underneath the 162 
road, and when the Lamprey’s wanted more to utilize more land to get more hay they installed the pipe 163 
to drain that portion of the land.  Mr. Marshall agreed, and said it was installed more than 25 years ago.  164 
 165 
Mr. Parker said that the William’s would like any approvals made by the Planning Board to be 166 
conditioned upon the work being done to replace the pipes with the correct size, and to retain the 167 
proper NH DES wetlands permits to do the work. 168 
 169 
Ms. Pohl asked if the catch basin, Mr. Parker referred to, was in the Town’s right-of-way.  Mr. Weinrieb 170 
said that it was probably on the Applicant’s property.  171 
 172 
Ms. Pohl said that the Town is proposing to improve a culvert on private property, and is not sure why 173 
the Town would get involved, with the taxpayers funding it.  174 
 175 
Mr. Kroner said that the Town built a road across the wetland and created a water problem on the other 176 
side that has to be alleviated with a drainage pipe. 177 
 178 
Mr. Harned said that if the Town puts in a road and it becomes a dam, then the town is responsible for 179 
putting in a pipe underneath the road of sufficient capacity to carry the water that would have gone 180 
through there if the road wasn’t there.  He said he has a problem with the Town funding a project that 181 
would go above and beyond that, and in doing so the Town could potentially be facilitating the draining 182 
of the wetlands. 183 
 184 
Mr. Weinrieb said that the water issues today are partly caused by Chapel Road creating a damming 185 
effect and the culvert initially put in was probably undersized.  The upslope is the Cotton Farm 186 
Development that has no detention areas and the subject lot is below that watershed.  He said that the 187 
proposal will not add to the drainage problems; whatever runoff that will come from the development 188 



Planning Board  
October 2, 2012                 Page 5 of 10 
 

Disclaimer – these minutes are prepared by the Recording Secretary within five (5) business days as required by NH 
RSA 91A:2,II.  They will not be finalized until approved by majority vote of the Planning Board. 

of the new lot will flush through before the peak of the larger watershed; “beating the peak”.  He said 189 
that Mr. Hubbard recognizes that it is a problem of the Town, and is willing to fix it.  190 
 191 
Mr. Harned said that the responsibility of the Town “starts” and “stops” with the culvert underneath the 192 
road and putting in the correct sized pipe to allow the increase in water to flow through. 193 
 194 
Mr. Marshall said that Mr. Hubbard told him that Mr. Marshall would have to dig up the catch basin and 195 
repair it because the pipe going in and the pipe going out are not at the right elevations, and the 196 
attachment of the concrete pipe underneath the road has a short piece of pipe before it goes into the 197 
catch basin, and that is what was done improperly.   198 
 199 
Dr. Arena said that the drainage problem still exists even after the Town put the culvert in, there is still 200 
sheet water running across Chapel Road; the pipe is either inadequate or it is plugged. He said that all 201 
the water on the north side that is supposed to be directed to that culvert is not working.  It was in his 202 
opinion that putting in a bigger pipe will not change the sheet flow across that particular area.  203 
 204 
Mr. Weinrieb said that there is still a small wetlands impact on the new configuration for the driveway 205 
resulting in a small roadside swale, but they feel it is the most appropriate location for the driveway 206 
because it has the best sight distance, but if the Board decides it wants the driveway outside the 207 
wetland area they will move its location. Mr. Weinrieb went over the wetland boundary. 208 
 209 
Mr. Harned said that it is important to have all of the wetlands delineated on the plan. Mr. Weinrieb 210 
said that in order to do that they would have to seek permission from the Abutter because they would 211 
have to access their property to delineate the buffer.  212 
 213 
Mr. Kroner said that typically the wetland delineation is shown on the subject property, not on the 214 
surrounding properties.  215 
 216 
Mr. Groth said that typically the wetlands are shown all around the property.  He agrees with Mr. 217 
Weinrieb that in practical reality the building activity will occur in the building envelope but also agrees 218 
with Mr. Harned to have all the wetlands delineated on the plan for consistency purposes.  219 
 220 
Dr. Arena pointed out that the proposed driveway is located in the best location, and would be safer 221 
there than moving it closer to the curve of the road.  222 
 223 
Alan Williams, 38 Chapel said that he has a pipe that goes 50-feet into his backyard that he knew 224 
nothing about when he bought the property eleven (11) years ago.  There was no mention of it in the 225 
deed and there was no easement. Ms. Joanne Lamprey told him she was given permission from the 226 
previous owner (Mrs. Williams’ cousin) to extend the pipe onto their property to assist in draining the 227 
water from her field across the street. Mr. Williams said he is concerned that a new house and driveway 228 
will create more surface water where there is already a surplus of water in that area during any heavy 229 
rainstorm.  230 
 231 
Mr. Kroner asked why Mr. Williams just doesn’t get rid of the pipe.  He said that it would have been 232 
better left alone so that the water could just drain naturally. 233 
 234 



Planning Board  
October 2, 2012                 Page 6 of 10 
 

Disclaimer – these minutes are prepared by the Recording Secretary within five (5) business days as required by NH 
RSA 91A:2,II.  They will not be finalized until approved by majority vote of the Planning Board. 

Mr. Williams didn’t think he should go to the expense of getting rid of the pipe, and if he did, the water 235 
would just bubble up on Chapel Road and wouldn’t do anyone any good.  236 
 237 
Mr. Parker said that any new development will increase the surface water and something needs to be 238 
done to correct the situation, whether it’s the Town’s responsibility or Mr. Marshall’s; it needs to be 239 
fixed and done so with the proper State Permits.  240 
 241 
Mr. Kroner closed the Public Hearing at 8:00pm.  242 
 243 
Mr. Weinrieb said that this development will not add to the existing drainage problems.  He said that the 244 
water runoff from the proposed new house and driveway will run off naturally; it will “beat the peak” of 245 
the water runoff from the large watershed above it (Cotton Farm), which takes hours to flow down onto 246 
Chapel Road.  247 
 248 
 Mr. Groth said that because the proposal is considered to be a lot line adjustment, and a subdivision, 249 
there are certain requirements that have to be met.  He commented on the following requirements that 250 
need to be addressed: 251 
 252 
VIII.B.20 – Stormwater drainage control plan.  Mr. Weinrieb said that due to the simplicity of the plan 253 
they are requesting a waiver to that requirement. 254 
 255 
VIII.B.23 – Designs of culverts. Mr. Weinrieb said that the size of the culvert is depicted on the plan. Mr. 256 
Groth said that the new plan was not reviewed by the Town’s Engineer and maybe that requirement has 257 
been satisfied. 258 
 259 
VIII.D – Monumentation Requirements. Mr. Groth said that monumentation should comply with the 260 
regulations. Mr. Weinrieb said that they are not proposing any new front corners, and asked if the 261 
existing monumentation would have to be removed.  262 
 263 
Mr. Groth said that that may not be the case, but the very least they should request a waiver to the 264 
monumentation requirement.  265 
 266 
Mr. Kroner explained that the Board cannot grant a waiver to any requirement without it first being 267 
publicly noticed.  268 
 269 
The Board discussed whether or not a stormwater drainage control study would be necessary.  270 
 271 
Mr. Miller said that handling of the drainage issues in the area is critical, and based on the Abutters’ 272 
concerns a study should be done.  273 
 274 
Mr. Harned said that the Board would not be doing its due diligence if it did not ask for a study to be 275 
done.  276 
 277 
Ms. Pohl concurred, and said that although this development is not the cause of the drainage problem, 278 
it’s still a problem, and has to be dealt with. 279 
 280 
It was a sense of the Board that a stormwater drainage study was necessary. 281 



Planning Board  
October 2, 2012                 Page 7 of 10 
 

Disclaimer – these minutes are prepared by the Recording Secretary within five (5) business days as required by NH 
RSA 91A:2,II.  They will not be finalized until approved by majority vote of the Planning Board. 

 282 
Mr. Kroner suggested continuing the Application to next month.  He said that the Board has 60 days to 283 
make a decision on an application, so technically the Board can decide to continue an application. 284 
 285 
Mr. Kroner suggested that Mr. Weinrieb forward a copy of the revised plan to the Town’s Engineer, KNA 286 
and let them know of the changes made from the original plan so that no part of the review is 287 
duplicated. 288 
 289 
Ms. Pohl moved and Mr. Harned seconded the motion to continue Case #12:10 – Golden K’s LLC to the 290 
November 2012 Meeting to give the Applicant a chance to apply for necessary waivers that will be 291 
publicly noticed. 292 
The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (7-0). 293 
 294 
Secretary’s note:  The Board agreed to change the November 6, 2012 meeting date to Wednesday 295 
November 7, 2012 due to the Presidential Election.  It was later determined that there was a 296 
scheduling conflict; the Planning Board meeting will be held on Monday, November 5, 2012 at the 297 
Town Hall at 6:30pm. 298 
 299 

I. New Business 300 
 301 
1.  There was no “New Business” before the Board.  302 
 303 

II. Other Business 304 
 305 
1. Case #12:12 – Richard Chorebanian, Ipswich Bay Yacht Sales, 6 Lafayette Road. Review of 306 

Conditions of Approval for a Change of Use set forth by the Planning Board on July 2, 2012, including 307 
the review of a new site plan. 308 

 309 
In attendance for this Application: 310 
Richard Chorebanian, Applicant  311 
Peter Saari, Applicant’s Counsel 312 
 313 
Mr. Kroner explained that Mr. Chorebanian received a conditional approval from the Planning Board to 314 
allow him to sell his boats at the site located at 6 Lafayette Road. The conditional approval was given by 315 
the Board on July 2, 2012 with a 60-day deadline to have each of the Board’s conditions met.  The 316 
Conditions are as follows:  317 
 318 

1. The Owner of the property shall submit a Site Plan for the entire site, including all parcels of the 319 
site on or before the October 2, 2012 Planning Board Meeting for review and Board approval.  320 

2. Between now and October 2, 2012 a landscaped buffer shall be installed on all parts of the 321 
property to the extent possible, except where structures prevent it.  To the extent that the 322 
existing structures allow any landscaped buffer, that it shall be installed.  323 

3. The Owner shall designate, by painted stripes, five (5) parking spaces immediately in front of the 324 
building designated as the “office”.  325 

 326 



Planning Board  
October 2, 2012                 Page 8 of 10 
 

Disclaimer – these minutes are prepared by the Recording Secretary within five (5) business days as required by NH 
RSA 91A:2,II.  They will not be finalized until approved by majority vote of the Planning Board. 

Mr. Saari said that there has been ongoing communications between the Applicant and the Owner 327 
regarding whose responsibility it is to have a site plan done of the property.  Mr. Saari said that the site 328 
plan has not been done and asked the Board if they could have more time. Mr. Chorebanian has 329 
obtained quotes to have the survey done. Mr. Saari said that the Board has asked that the entire site be 330 
surveyed; not just Mr. Chorebanian’s site and it’s much more expensive than anticipated. He said that 331 
Mr. Chorebanian has put a lot of money into cleaning up the property, paving and landscaping. He said 332 
restricting the extent of the site plan would be better for the applicant.  333 

 334 
Mr. Groth said that the Board was once faced with a similar situation and allowed the change of use 335 
with the condition that any future changes would require a full site plan. 336 
 337 
Mr. Harned said that the problems the Board dealt with on this application in July were such things like 338 
the buildings were not properly depicted on the plan; it appeared that buildings were improperly 339 
designated on lots. He said that there were significant discrepancies with what was shown on the site 340 
and what was shown on the tax assessment cards.  341 
 342 
Mr. Kroner said that there was questions on the cape style house either on the property or associated 343 
with the property; there is a provision in the ordinance that allows either commercial use, or residential 344 
use, but not both on the same site.  He said that he agrees that the site has been improved, but the 345 
Board needs a base plan. 346 
 347 
Mr. Saari said that the Landlord is leaving it up to Mr. Chorebanian to take care of and it is a big site; 348 
beyond what Mr. Chorebanian is utilizing.  349 
 350 
Mr. Kroner said that the Planning Board has the authority to require a site plan when considering a 351 
change of use application if they feel it is necessary.  He explained that updated site plans are important; 352 
they are used by the Building Inspector and Fire Department to ensure that all safety and building codes 353 
are up to date, as well as determining if there are any zoning violations.  354 
 355 
Mr. Miller said that if the Landlord is not in compliance with the Zoning Ordinances, or if there is a safety 356 
issue; how can the Town allow activity there. 357 
 358 
Mr. Kroner said that the Board took a leap of faith; the applicant came in and said he would invest 359 
money into a site that looked unappealing and make a portion of it look nicer; the Board agreed with the 360 
condition that in 60 days they wanted a Recordable Mylar for the entire site.  He said the Board has 361 
three (3) options: 1. Find out if and how they could alter a condition already imposed; 2. Give the 362 
Applicant more time to produce a Recordable Mylar, or 3. Rescind the Change of Use approval.  363 
 364 
Dr. Arena said that producing the Recordable Mylar was the responsibility of the Landlord; not the 365 
tenant. He said that Mr. Chorebanian has already done a magnificent job to improve the site.  366 
Ms. Kohl asked how the Board would compel the Landlord to come in and meet that condition of 367 
approval. 368 
 369 
Mr. Groth suggested that the Board take the time to review what plans are on file and reach out to the 370 
Landlord to work on a solution.  He said that if the applicant doesn’t comply with the condition and 371 
vacates the property, then there is an empty building on Route 1.  372 
 373 



Planning Board  
October 2, 2012                 Page 9 of 10 
 

Disclaimer – these minutes are prepared by the Recording Secretary within five (5) business days as required by NH 
RSA 91A:2,II.  They will not be finalized until approved by majority vote of the Planning Board. 

Mr. Chorebanian said that the Landlord has spent money improving the site and he has spent a lot of 374 
money improving the site and it is hard to spend money on someone else’s property; he said he is stuck 375 
between a rock and a hard place.  376 
 377 
Ms. Kohl said that the Board needs to find out more information on the existing businesses on the site 378 
and whether or not they are “grandfathered” uses.  379 
 380 
Mr. Harned suggested that the Board grant an extension to the Applicant, and authorize Mr. Kroner to 381 
meet with the Building Inspector and discuss the issues the Planning Board has with this site and ask him 382 
to look into it and report his findings to the Board at the next Work Session, and then the Board can 383 
discuss how to move forward.  384 
 385 
The Board agreed to extend the condition of approval for 60 more days. They also agreed that the 386 
Recordable Mylar for the entire site was the responsibility of the Landlord.  387 
 388 
Ms. Kohl commented that the Board would be granting the owner of the property the 60 day extension 389 
and that the Applicant could continue to operate his business; the Board agreed. 390 
 391 
Mr. Harned moved and Ms. Kohl seconded the motion regarding PB Case #12:12, date of decision, July 392 
2, 2012, tax map and lot 003-090-000, Condition #1 – Recordable Mylar be extended for another sixty 393 
(60) days and authorize Mr. Kroner to hold discussions with the Building Inspector, and make the 394 
Building Inspector aware of the Board’s concerns that led to this decision, and request the Building 395 
Inspector to do some background work, information gathering regarding the lot and the Board’s 396 
concerns, and be in a position to report to the Board at the next Work Session, October 16, 2012. 397 
 398 
Dr. Arena made a friendly amendment that the discussions shall involve the Town’s Building Inspector 399 
and the property owner; not the tenant Mr. Chorebanian. 400 
Mr. Harned and Ms. Kohl accepted the friendly amendment.  401 
The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (7-0). 402 
 403 

III. Other Business 404 

 405 
Dr. Arena reported to the Board that there is a hazard situation coming out of Rite Aid heading 406 
southbound onto Atlantic Avenue.  There is a blind spot in the line of sight from the westerly direction.  407 
Dr. Arena said that they exceeded the amount of juniper trees allowed after the plan was accepted, and 408 
would like the Building Inspector to check the plan and instruct the owner of Rite Aid to remove any 409 
trees that interfere with the sight line. He said that the trees closest to the road are probably on State 410 
property.  Mr. Kroner said that he will inform the Building Inspector when he meets with him regarding 411 
the previous case. 412 
 413 
Mr. Kroner reported on the Visioning Session held on Saturday, September 29th.  He said that 23 people 414 
attended and it went smoothly.  He said the Session scheduled on October 6th will inform the public and 415 
the Board what was captured at the first session. 416 
 417 



Planning Board  
October 2, 2012                 Page 10 of 10 
 

Disclaimer – these minutes are prepared by the Recording Secretary within five (5) business days as required by NH 
RSA 91A:2,II.  They will not be finalized until approved by majority vote of the Planning Board. 

Dr. Arena said that many people told him that the Visioning Sessions were not publicized enough.  The 418 
Sessions were published in the paper; on patch.com, in the Library’s newsletter, Channel 22 and the 419 
municipal sign out front.  Mr. Kroner said he passed out flyers at all the local sporting events.  420 
 421 
Mr. Groth said the format of the second Vision Session will be different; it will be a presentation of what 422 
people said at the first session, as well a,s receiving any new information people want to offer.  423 
 424 
Mr. Kroner said that he received a letter from the owner of Sagamore Golf Club that stated that the 425 
Department of Transportation is unwilling to clear maple trees along the freeway to improve the sight 426 
line for their approved sign.  They may be coming back before the Board if they need to change their 427 
plan. 428 
 429 
Mr. Groth informed the Board that he resigned from Rockingham Planning Commission to take a 430 
consulting position for a Company in Newburyport, MA.   He said that RPC is figuring out who will 431 
replace him.  This is Mr. Groth’s last meeting.  The Members congratulated Mr. Groth on his new job 432 
opportunity and thanked him for his dedicated service to the Town of North Hampton.  433 
 434 
The meeting adjourned at 8:45pm without objection.  435 
 436 
Respectfully submitted, 437 
 438 
Wendy V. Chase 439 
Recording Secretary 440 
 441 
Minutes Approved 10/16/2012 442 
 443 
 444 


